
11 July 2019 at 7.30 pm*
*or on the rising of Cabinet whichever is the later

Conference Room, Argyle Road, Sevenoaks
Despatched: 03.07.19

Governance Committee 
Membership:
Chairman, Cllr. Eyre; Vice-Chairman, Cllr. Pearsall  
Cllrs. Barnes, Bayley, Clayton, Penny Cole and Harrison

Agenda
There are no fire drills planned. If the fire alarm is activated, which is a 
continuous siren with a flashing red light, please leave the building immediately, 
following the fire exit signs.

Apologies for Absence
Pages Contact

1.  Minutes (Pages 1 - 4)
To agree the Minutes of the meeting of the 
Committee held on 12 February 2019, as a 
correct record.

2.  Declarations of Interest 
Any interest not already registered.

3.  Actions from the previous meeting (if any)  

4.  The Chairman of the Council (Pages 5 - 8) Lesley Bowles, Jim 
Carrington-West, 
Martin Goodman Tel: 
01732 
227335/7286/7245

5.  Work Plan (Pages 9 - 10)  

EXEMPT INFORMATION 

At the time of preparing this agenda there were no exempt items. During any 
such items which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public.

If you wish to obtain further factual information on any of the agenda items listed 
above, please contact the named officer prior to the day of the meeting.



Should you need this agenda or any of the reports in a different format, or 
have any other queries concerning this agenda or the meeting please contact 
Democratic Services on 01732 227000 or democratic.services@sevenoaks.gov.uk.



5

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting held on 12 February 2019 commencing at 7.00 pm

Present: Cllr. Pett (Chairman)

Cllr. Scott (Vice Chairman)

Cllrs. Clack, Layland, London and McGarvey

Cllrs. Dr Canet, Clark and Mrs Morris were also present.

8.   Minutes 

Resolved:  That the minutes of the meeting of the Governance Committee 
held on the 6 November 2018 be approved and signed by the Chairman as a 
correct record. 

9.   Declarations of Interest 

No additional declarations of interest were made. 

10.   Actions from the previous meeting (if any) 

There were none. 

11.   Councillor Absence Working Group Update 

Councillor Pett presented the report as Chairman of the Councillor Absence 
working group. There had been two meetings of the working group which had been 
considering measures that could be put in place to support Councillors who may be 
seeking an extended (more than 6 months) leave of absence from Councillor 
duties. The Chairman advised that the working group was proposing guidelines 
rather than a rigid policy, which would be required to comply with Section 85 of 
the Local Government Act 1972. 

It was suggested that full Council could delegate the responsibility for hearing 
these cases to a committee or subcommittee, ideally the Governance or Standards 
Committee. Extraordinary meetings of the chosen Committee could be called the 
hear Councillor absence cases if necessary to ensure they would be considered 
within the 6-month time frame. Members recognised that a sensitive approach may 
be necessary when considering Councillor absence and had some reservations 
about absence cases being heard at full Council in open sitting. Members discussed 
the possibility of absence documents and hearings being classified as confidential.

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



Governance Committee - 12 February 2019

6

The Head of Legal and Democratic Services advised that the responsibility to 
consider Councillor absence should not be delegated to Cabinet and the extension 
of an absence would need to be approved in advance of the 6-month deadline to 
enable a Councillor to continue serving past this date. Members were advised that 
any proposed delegation should only be made in accordance with legal advice. 

It was noted that Councillors were not employed by the Council but rather elected 
by their constituents and considerations must be given to covering an absent 
Councillor’s local responsibilities. Members discussed how work to support 
residents would be covered in single Member wards and wards with Members from 
differing political parties. It was recognised that this would be more difficult in 
some cases than in others. 

It was requested that in relation to maternity/paternity absence wording could be 
included in the Councillor welcome pack to recognise and support Councillors who 
have children during their term and Democratic Services could meet with 
Councillors who were expecting a baby to discuss their leave. Although the 
examples given for prolonged absence in the report were all medical reasons, 
Members acknowledged there may also be non-medical reasons. 

The Committee was thanked for its support in considering Councillor absence 
arrangements. 

Resolved:  That 

a) the report be noted,

b) it be suggested to officers that they consider including clear guidance on 
Councillor’s absence in the beginning of term Induction Pack; and 

c) the Head of Legal and Democratic Services draft a report recommending 
to Council that the terms of reference for the Governance Committee be 
extended to include delegated authority to approve in advance Member 
non-attendance at meetings of the authority which would otherwise 
exceed the period of 6 months set out in s.85 (1) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, unless he receives legal advice indicating such a 
delegation would be unlawful.

12.   Amendments to the Constitution: Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing 
Procedures 

The Committee was advised that Officers had recently undertaken a review of 
Licensing Committee procedures, initiated by the possibility of requiring a hearing 
for a Sex Entertainment Venue application. Part 8 of the Council’s Constitution was 
found to be lacking a tailored sub-committee hearing procedure. The Committee 
considered the draft Licensing Committee Appendix attached to the report. 

Page 2

Agenda Item 1



Governance Committee - 12 February 2019

7

Members identified areas for further amendment within the draft procedure which 
the Head of Legal and Democratic Services noted and agreed to consider those 
changes. 

Resolved:  That 

a) ‘Part 8 – Licensing Committee’ of the Council’s Constitution be amended as 
set out in Appendix A; and

b) delegated authority be granted to the Head of Legal & Democratic Services, 
to draft further amendments to Part 8 of the Council’s Constitution to 
include hearing procedures under the Gambling Act 2005 and the Town 
Police Clauses Act 1847, Public Health Act 1875 and Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, for consideration at Council on 30 April 
2019 after consultation with the Chairman of Governance.

13.   Work Plan 

The work plan was noted. 

THE MEETING WAS CONCLUDED AT 7.48 PM

CHAIRMAN

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



THE CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNCIL

Governance Committee – 11 July 2019

Report of Chief Officer Communities and Business

Chief Officer Corporate Services

Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Status For consideration 

Key Decision No 

Executive Summary: A Member-only working party is proposed to consider the role 
of the Chairman of the Council

Portfolio Holder Cllr Peter Fleming

Contact Officer Martin Goodman,  Ext. 7245

Recommendation to Governance Committee:  That

(a) A Member working group be established to consist of five Governance 
Committee Members nominated by the Committee, with the purpose 
of defining the roles of the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the 
Council (other than as relates to the chairing of Council meetings);

(b) A report on this work of the Member working group and any 
recommendations be brought to a future meeting of the Governance 
Committee for consideration, such report to include a clear indication 
of proposed growth.

Reason for recommendation: To clarify and define the roles of Chairman and Vice 
Chairman of the Council for the benefit of Officers and Members.

Introduction and Background

1 The Chairman’s role is defined in Part 2 to the Constitution.  This sets out 
that the Chairman of the Council will carry out the ceremonial duties of the 
Council attending such civic and ceremonial functions as the Council and/or 
s/he determines appropriate.  

2 The Chairman is the “first resident” of the District and takes precedence 
over others present at any function (except for the Sovereign or 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



representative of the Sovereign).  The Chairman is also responsible for 
Chairing Council meetings.

3 The role of the Chairman of the Council was significantly reduced by 
Members during the 2011/12 budgeting process, resulting in a saving of 
£68,000 per year (SCIA 39).  At that time Members voted for a major 
reduction in Chairman’s activities with the ceasing of all civic events and the 
deletion of the Chairman’s administrative support role.

4 It was understood by Members at the time that this would lead to a much 
reduced profile for the District’s Chairman except for attendance at events 
at no cost.  At the time, Members were reminded that a small Chairman’s 
transport fund would remain available and could be used until it was 
exhausted, although it was noted that many former Chairmen had driven 
themselves to most events.  Members also noted that the Chairman and Vice 
Chairman would still receive significant allowances they could spend as they 
wished to support their roles. 

The Chairman

5 The Chairman is invited to a wide range of events both inside and outside 
the District.  A large number of these are social in nature and a good number 
involve significant travel implications.  There are at present no 
constitutional provisions limiting the scope of attendance at such events and 
it is unclear which events are supported by the Council’s resources.  There is 
no clarity on permissible travel expenses, for example by taxi, although 
there is a limited budget from which such claims may be paid.

6 Members will be aware that there is at present no secretarial or dedicated 
administrative support for the Chairman.  Officers of Democratic Services 
offer limited assistance by way of diary and event management over and 
above their normal duties.  

7 Defining the role of the Chairman and Vice Chairman will provide clarity to 
Members and Officers.  It will clarify what the Chairman’s allowance is 
intended to cover and the travel expenses which may legitimately be 
claimed.  Carrying the review out at this time will allow for any growth item 
to be included within the 2019/20 budget setting process.  

Key Implications

Financial 

Greater administrative support than is currently made available to the Chairman 
will need to be budgeted as a growth item.  It is not possible to widen the scope of 
Officer support, or to provide greater support for travel expenses, without a 
growth item.

Legal Implications and Risk Assessment Statement. 

No relevant legal implications or Risk Assessment.

Page 6

Agenda Item 4



Equality Assessment  

The decisions recommended through this paper have a remote or low relevance to 
the substance of the Equality Act. There is no perceived impact on end users.

Conclusions

This report proposes a Member working group and makes no recommendations as to 
outcome.

Appendices None

Lesley Bowles

Chief Officer Communities and Business

Jim Carrington-West

Chief Officer Corporate Services

Martin Goodman

Head of Legal and Democratic Services

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Governance Committee Work Plan 2018/19 (as at 03/07/19)

11 July 2019 5 November 2019 4 February 2020 Summer 2020

Chairman of the Council

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	4 The Chairman of the Council
	5 Work Plan

